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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

Plaintiff, 

\rNl:2 1 · 4 5 
CLASS ACTION COM9LAINT ( 
FOR: 

1. VIOLATION OF THE 
CALIFORNIA CONSUMER 
LEGAL REMEDIES ACT FOR 
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF; 

SIO X HONEY ASSOCIATION, 
CO PERA TIVE, an Iowa Entity. 

2. VIOLATIONS OF 
CALIFORNIA BUS. & PROF. 
CODE §§ 17200 ET SEQ.; 

3. VIOLATIONS OF THE FALSE 
ADVERTISING LAW §17500; Defendant. 

4. ALTERNATIVELY, UNJUST 
ENRICHMENT/RESTITUTION 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

Case3:12-cv-01645-LB   Document1   Filed04/02/12   Page1 of 9



1 P aintiff Soraya Ross ('"Plaintiff') individually and on behalf of all others simila ly 

2 situated by her undersigned counsel, alleges the following upon personal knowledge as 

3 to her wn acts and upon information and belief as to all other matters. Plainti rs 

4 inform tion and belief are based upon the investigation conducted by counsel. 

5 

6 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

Plaintiff brings this action both individually on her own behalf and as a c ass 

7 action against Defendant Sioux Honey Association, Cooperative ('"Sioux" or 

8 '"Defe dant") on behalf of a Class of all persons who purchased Sue Bee Clover H ney 

9 ee Honey") from any store located in California at any time from January 1, 010 

10 throu h the present (the '"Class"). 

11 2. At all times relevant hereto, Defendant manufactured Sue Bee Honey 

12 was arketed to California consumers and sold in stores located in the Sta e o 

13 Cali£ rnia. 

14 3. In California, for a product to be sold as ~~honey" it must contain ollen 

15 unle s the removal of such pollen was ""unavoidable in the removal of foreign ino ganic 

16 or or anic matter." CAL. FOOD & AGRIC. CODE§ 29413(e). 

17 4. Despite being marketed as '"Pure Honey," the Sue Bee Honey cannot sold 

18 in t State of California as ~~honey" as defined by California Food and Agricultur 

19 sect on 29413(a), (e) because it is devoid of pollen, and such pollen w s 

20 ""un voidably" removed '"in the removal of foreign inorganic or organic matter." 

21 5. Accordingly, by advertising and selling to California consumers the S 

22 Ho ey as ""honey" in contravention of California Food and Agriculture Code ection 

23 29 13(a), (e) and California Food and Agriculture Code section 29673, De endant 

24 vio ated California's Consumers Legal Remedies Act ('"CLRA"), Unfair Com etition, 

25 La ('"UCL"), and False Advertising Law ('"F AL"), and unjustly enriched itsel to th~ 

26 de riment of both Plaintiff and members ofthe Class. 

27 \\ 

28 \\\ 

2 
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) . ' 

1 THE PARTIES 

2 Plaintiff Soraya Ross is a resident of Beverly Hills, California and a cit zen 

3 of the State of California. On March 4, 2012, Plaintiff purchased a bottle of Sue ee 

4 Honey for $6.49 from an Albertsons in Santa Monica, California. Plaintiff relied 

5 the re resentation that the Sue Bee Honey was "honey" and could be sold as sue to 

6 Califo 1a consumers. 

7 

8 the 

Defendant Sioux is a cooperative association organized under the law o 

of Iowa. Defendant's corporate headquarters is located at 301 L wis 

9 Boule ard, Sioux City, Iowa 51101. Defendant advertises, distributes, markets and ells 

10 the Su Bee Honey to thousands of consumers throughout California in contraventio o 

11 Califo nia's law as set forth herein. 

12 JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

13 This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the claims asserted in this 

14 action pursuant to the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005, 28 U.S.C. § 1332. Plainti f, a 

15 citize of California, brings claims on behalf of a class of California citizens ag inst 

16 ant, a citizen of Iowa. 

17 This Court has jurisdiction over all causes of action asserted herein purs ant 

18 to 28 .S.C. § 1332(d) because the aggregate claims of Plaintiff and members o 

19 Class xceed the sum or value of $5,000,000, and diversity of citizenship exists be 

20 at leas one member of the proposed Class and Defendant. 

21 0. Upon information and belief, Defendant's sales of honey from Janua 1, 

22 2010 t the end ofFebruary 2012 exceeded the sum of$13,000,000. 

23 11. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because it main ains 

24 suffici nt contacts in this jurisdiction, including the marketing and distribution of the Sue 

25 Bee H ney in this jurisdiction. 

26 12. Venue is proper in this District because a substantial part of the events and 

27 omiss · ons giving rise to the claim occurred in this District, including the marketing and 

28 distrib tion of Sue Bee Honey in this District. 

3 
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1 SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 

2 The Sll e Bee Honev 

3 3. Defendant sells the Sue Bee Honey under the "Sue Bee" name. 

4 4. Honey is one of the most popular condiments in the United States. Pe< ple 

5 in the United States consume approximately 400 million pounds of honey per year. 

6 Defen«~ant states on its website that it is responsible for the production of "around 40 

7 millior pounds of honey" per year. http://www.suebee.com/about. 

8 5. Defendant markets the Sue Bee Honey as "honey" and as "pure honey as 

9 promir ently displayed on its label. However, as described herein, the Sue Bee Honey 

10 may n )t be sold as "honey" as defined by California Food and Agriculture Code sec ion 

11 29413( a), (e) because all of the pollen in the Sue Bee Hon~y has been unnecessa ily 

12 remov d. 

13 

14 The Sw e Bee Honev Cannot Be Sold as "Honev" in California 

15 16. Pursuant to California Food and Agriculture Code section 29413(e), once 

16 the pol en is removed from honey (except where unavoidable in the removal of foreign 

17 inorganic or organic matter), the condiment, under the California Food and Agricul ure 

18 Code, h no longer salable in the state as "honey". 

19 17. California Food and Agriculture Code states in relevant part: 

20 

21 

22 

23 

( ) "Honey" means the natural sweet substance produced by honeybees ... 

* * * 
( ) ... Honey shall not have begun to ferment or effervesce and no pollen or 
constituent particular to honey may be removed except where unavoidable 
i 1 the removal of foreign inorganic or organic matter. 

24 CAL. Fe OD & AGRIC. CODE§ 29413(a), (e) (emphasis added). 

25 

26 

27 

28 

18. Further, the California Food and Agriculture Code provides that: 

I is unlawful for any person to mislabel any container or sub container of 
hpney or place any false or misleading statement on any wrapper, label, or 
1· ning of any container of honey ... 

4 
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1 CAL. F )OD & AGRIC. CODE§ 29673. 

2 9. Moreover, "mislabeled" means: 

3 

4 

5 

6 

9 
20. The State of California has specifically condemned and criminalized uch 

mislabeling. Under California Food and Agriculture Code section 29701, "a violaticn o 
10 

this chapter is an infraction punishable by a fine of not more than five hundred do Iars 
11 

12 
($500) .... " CAL. FOOD & AGRIC. CODE§ 29701. 

13 

14 Defen iant's Sale of Sue Bee Hon~v in California is Unlawful 

15 ~ 1. Despite the strict requirements of the California Food and Agriculture Code 

16 Defen~ant has sold the Sue Bee Honey as "honey" when, in fact, the Sue Bee Hpney 

17 does t ot contain pollen and therefore it cannot be sold in the State of Californ a as 

18 "hone Lr" 

19 22. Defendant has admitted that it removes all of Sue Bee Honey's na~ura 

20 pollen on its website: 

21 Sue Bee Honey is filtered to remove all pollen to lessen its chances of 

22 granulation (sugaring) .... Pollen adds to the nutritional value of honey. 

23 htto://www.suebee.com/honev/faq (emphasis added). 

24 23. Further, Defendant's website makes clear that such removal of poller was 

25 not n cessary for the removal of foreign matter from the honey, rather, the poll~n is 

26 remo' ed "to lessen its chances of granulation (sugaring)." In fact, Defendant sells pther 

27 hone) varieties that have not had all of their pollen removed, demonstrating that it i! able 

28 to sel honey with pollen. 

5 
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1 : 4. It is clear that the Sue Bee Honey does not contain pollen, which !Was 

2 unnece sarily removed. Therefore, the Sue Bee Honey cannot be sold in the Stat o 

3 California as "honey" as defined by the California Food and Agriculture Code. 

4 '5. By engaging in the foregoing conduct, Defendant has violated the CLRA, 

5 UCL a~d FAL and unjustly enriched itself at the expense of Plaintiff and members o the 

6 Class. 
7 

8 Defem ant's Sale of the Sue Bee Honey 

9 Dama1 ed Plaintiff and Class Members 

10 
' 6. At all times relevant hereto, Defendant sold the Sue Bee Honey thrc ugh 

11 stores ocated throughout California. 

12 ~7. Had Plaintiff and members ofthe Class known the Sue Bee Honey coul< not 

13 be sole within the State of California as "honey", or that the Sue Bee Honey did not 

14 contair any pollen, Plaintiff and members of the Class would not have purchased the Sue 

15 Bee Hmey. 

16 ~8. As a result of Defendant's misconduct, Plaintiff and Class members suf ered 

17 econmpic losses. 

18 CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

19 :>9. Plaintiff brings this action both individually and as a class action pursuant to 

20 Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a), 23(b)(2) and 23(b)(3) against Defendant, on her own behalf and on 

21 behalf of any person who purchased a bottle of Sue Bee Honey from any store locat d in 

22 California at any time from January 1, 2010, through the present. 

23 ~0. Members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members wou d be 

24 impra ticable. Plaintiff estimates that there are thousands of members of the Class. Wpon 

25 infom ation and belief, Defendant's sales of honey from January 1, 2010 to the e1 d ol 

26 Febru ry 2012 exceeded the sum of$13,000,000. 

27 31. Questions of law and fact are common to all the members of the Clas! that 

28 predo !ninate over any questions affecting only individual members, including: 

6 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

Whether the Sue Bee Honey was devoid of pollen; 

Whether the sale of Sue Bee Honey as "honey" violated the California food 

and Agriculture Code; 

Whether Defendant's conduct violated the CLRA; 

Whether Defendant's conduct violated the UCL; 

Whether Defendant's conduct violated the FAL; 

Whether Defendant's sale of the Sue Bee Honey unjustly enricJ1ed 

Defendant at the expense of Plaintiff and members of the Class; and 

Whether as a result of Defendant's misconduct, Plaintiff and other C ass 

members are entitled to damages, restitution, equitable relief, injunc ive 

relief, or other relief, and the amount and nature of such relief. 

12 3~. The claims of Plaintiff are typical of the claims of the members of the Ch ss. 

13 Plaintif has no interests antagonistic to those of the Class, and Defendant has no 

14 defense unique to the Plaintiff. 

15 3 ~. Plaintiff will protect the interests of the Class fairly and adequately, ~: nd 

16 Plaintif1 has retained attorneys experienced in complex class action litigation. 

17 3, . A class action is superior to all other available methods for this controve sy 

18 because i) the prosecution of separate actions by the members of the Class would ere te 

19 a risk OJ adjudications with respect to individual members of the Class that would, a~ a 

20 practical matter, be dispositive of the interests of the other members not parties to the 

21 adjudica ions, or substantially impair or impede their ability to protect their interests; i) 

22 the prost cution of separate actions by the members of the Class would create a risk of 

23 inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to the individual members of the Clm s, 

24 which wpuld establish incompatible standards of conduct for Defendant; iii) Defendant 

25 acted or efused to act on grounds generally applicable to the Class; and iv) questions ){ 

26 law and ract common to members of the Class predominate over any questions affectir g 

27 only individual members, and a class action is superior to other available methods for tt e 

28 fair and e ficient adjudication of the controversy. 

7 
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1 Plaintiff does not anticipate any difficulty m the management of this 

2 litigati 

3 

4 

5 

6 

COUNT I 
(B Plaintiff, Individually and on Behalf of All Class Members, for Violation 
of he California Consumers Legal Remedies Act For Injunctive Relief, only 

CAL. CIV. CODE§§ 1750 et seq.) 

6. Plaintiff incorporates and realleges all ofthe foregoing paragraphs. 

7 7. At all times relevant herein, the Consumers Legal Remedies Act ( CL 

8 was in effect. The CLRA prohibits "unfair or deceptive acts or practices." Plai 

9 bases t is count on Defendant's omissions of a material fact of which Defendant 

10 exclusi e knowledge and was obliged to disclose. 

11 The Sue Bee Honey is a "good" under Cal. Civ. Code§ 1761(a). 

12 

13 

14 

Plaintiff and Class members are "consumers" under Cal. Civ. 

The CLRA applies to Defendant's conduct because Defendant's con uct 

15 was in ended to result, and did result, in the sale of goods for personal, family, or 

16 househ ld use. 

17 The CLRA prohibits representing that goods or serviCes 

18 charact ristics, ingredients, uses, benefits, or quantities which they do not 

19 represe ting that goods or services are of a particular standard, quality, or grade, if t ey 

20 are of a other; and advertising goods with intent not to sell them as advertised. 

21 At all times relevant hereto, Defendant misrepresented the qual ty, 

22 charact ristics, and/or ingredients of the Sue Bee Honey, and advertised the Sue ee 

23 ith intent not to sell it as advertised. 

24 In particular, Defendant marketed for sale in California the Sue Bee Ho ey 

25 as "hon y" when it could not be sold as "honey" as defined by the California Food nd 

26 Agricul ure Code. 

27 Had Plaintiff and members of the Class known the Sue Bee Honey could ot 

28 be sold within the State of California as "honey" or that the Sue Bee Honey did ot 

8 
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1 contai any pollen, Plaintiff and members of the Class would not have purchased the ue 

2 

3 As a result of Defendant's misconduct, which is ongoing, Plaintiff and C ass 

4 memb rs have suffered economic losses. 

5 Accordingly, Plaintiff and Class members seek a permanent injunct on, 

6 only, o this count. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

COUNT II 
(By P aintiff, Individually and on Behalf of All Class Members for Violations of the 

Unfair Competition Law, CAL. Bus. & PROF. CODE§§ 17200 et seq.) 

Plaintiff incorporates and realleges all of the foregoing paragraphs. 

Defendant's practices as alleged in this Complaint constitute unlawful and 

13 unfair business acts and practices under California's Unfair Competition Law (U L), 

14 Bus. PROF. CODE§§ 17200 et seq. 

15 9. The UCL prohibits acts of "unfair competition," including any unla 

16 unfair fraudulent or deceptive business act or practice. 

17 50. Under the unlawful prong of the UCL, a violation of another law is tr ated 

18 as un ir competition that is independently actionable. 

19 A business practice is "unfair" if it violates an established public policy or i 

20 it is i moral, unethical, oppressive, or unscrupulous and causes injury to consu ers 

21 whic outweighs its benefits; or if a reasonable consumer would be deceived b the 

22 labeli g of the product. 

23 52. Defendant committed unlawful practices because it violated the CLRA. 

24 53. Defendant committed "unfair" business acts and practices by engagi g in 

25 cond ct where the utility of such conduct, if any, is outweighed by the gravity f the 

26 cons uences to Plaintiff and to other Class members and engaging in conduct t at is 

27 imm ral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous, or substantially injurious to Plainti and 

28 to ot er Class members. 

9 
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1 4. Furthermore, members of the California public are likely to be deceive by 

2 Defen ant's marketing of the Sue Bee Honey because pursuant to California law, the 

3 produc cannot be marketed or sold as "honey". 

4 5. Defendant also committed unlawful acts because it violated the Califo Ia 

5 Food a d Agriculture Code. 

6 6. Under the California Food and Agriculture Code, a condiment canno be 

7 sold as "honey" if it contains "no pollen" or "any constituent particular to honey" has 

8 been u necessarily removed. 

9 Specifically, section 29413 entitled "Definitions of 'Honey'; Sale ofho ey; 

10 Standa ds" provides in relevant part that: 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

( ) "Honey" means the natural sweet substance produced by honeybees from 
t e nectar of plants or from secretions of living parts of plants or excretions 

f plant sucking insects on the living parts of plants, which the bees collect, 
t ansform by combining with specific substances of their own, deposit, 

ehydrate, store, and leave in the honeycomb to ripen and mature. 

* * * 
( ) Honey sold as described in subdivision (d) shall not have added to it any 

od ingredient, including food additives, nor shall any other additions be 
ade other than honey. Honey shall not have any objectionable matter, 
avor, aroma, or taint absorbed from foreign matter during its processing 

a d storage. Honey shall not have begun to ferment or effervesce and no 
!len or constituent particular to honey may be removed except where 
avoidable in the removal of foreign inorganic or organic matter. 

OD & AGRIC. CODE§ 29413 (emphasis added). 

5 . Further, the California Food and Agriculture Code prohibits the f: lse 

24 label in of honey that does not meet the definition of "honey" and which cannot be s ld 

25 in the S ate of California as "honey". 

26 In particular, section 29673 entitled "Mislabeling; False or mislead'ng 

27 

28 

10 
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I 

2 

3 

I is unlawful for any person to mislabel any container or sub container of 
oney or place any false or misleading statement on any wrapper, label, or 

I ning of any container of honey, or on any placard which is used in 
onnection with or which has reference to any honey. 

4 CAL. F 00 & AGRIC. CODE § 29673. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

IO 

II 

Moreover, under section 294I6, entitled "Mislabeled" means the followi g: 

t e placing or presence of any false or misleading statement, design, or 
evice upon, or in connection with, any container or lot of honey, or upon 

t e label, lining, or wrapper of any such container, or any placard used in 
c nnection with any container or lot of honey, which has reference to such 

oney. A statement, design, or device is false and misleading, if the honey to 
hich it apparently or actually refers does not conform in every respect to 

s ch statement. 

I2 CAL. F OD & AGRIC. CODE § 294I6. 

I3 6I. The State of California has specifically condemned and criminalized s ch 

I4 mislab ling. Under California Food and Agriculture Code section 2970I, enti led 

I5 "Infrac ion; Second or subsequent violation as misdemeanor; Fine or imprisonment," 

I6 

I7 

I8 

I9 

20 

2I 

( ) Unless otherwise specified, a violation of this chapter is an infraction 
p nishable by a fine of not more than five hundred dollars ($500). 

( ) A conviction of a second or subsequent violation of this chapter within 
a y I2- month period is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not less than 
o e hundred dollars ($IOO) nor more than one thousand dollars ($I,OOO) or 
b imprisonment in the county jail for not more than six months, or by both 
t e fine and imprisonment. 

22 CAL. F OD & AGRIC. CODE § 2970 I. 

23 6 . By selling "honey" that has had its pollen unnecessarily remo ed, 

24 Defend nt has violated the California Food and Agriculture Code. 

25 

26 CLRA. 

27 I I I 

28 I I I 

In addition, Defendant committed unlawful practices because it violated he 

11 
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I • 

-~Tl'·;: :; 
·, ,. 

1 Furthermore, by illegally misbranding the Sue Bee Honey as "ho ey" 

2 Defen ant has violated California Health and Safety Code section 110765. 

3 5. Plaintiff and Class members have suffered injury in fact and have lost 

4 money and property as a result of Defendant's unlawful and unfair practices. 

5 

6 COUNT III 

7 

8 

9 

10 

(By P aintiff, Individually and on Behalf of All Class Members for Violations of he 
False Advertising Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500) 

Plaintiff incorporates and realleges all ofthe foregoing paragraphs. 

California Business and Professions Code § 17500 makes it unlawful for 

11 corpor ion or association selling anything "of any nature whosoever" to intention lly 

12 make y statement or omission, including over the Internet, in connection with the 

13 marketi g or sale of such product which is untrue, misleading or deceptive. Specific ly, 

14 Cal. Bu . & Prof. Code §17500 prohibits a business from engaging in a scheme with he 

15 intent n t to sell a product as so advertised. 

16 Defendant engaged in false, untrue, misleading and deceptive advertisin 

17 Califo ia, in violation of California Business and Professions Code section 175 

18 because it should have known that it was violating the California Food and Agricult re 

19 Code b uniformly labeling and marketing its Sue Bee Honey as "honey" when it in 

20 could n t be sold as "honey" in the State of California. 

21 As a result of Defendant's misleading statements and omissions, reasona le 

22 consum rs, including Plaintiff, were misled or likely to be misled into believing that he 

23 Sue Bee Honey could be sold as "honey" in the State of California. 

24 Defendant engaged in the aforementioned deceptive and mislead· 

25 business practices to increase its profits. As such, Defendant's deceptive statements 

26 omissio s caused substantial injury to consumers, including Plaintiff and members of e 

27 Class. 

28 I I I 

12 
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1 1. Plaintiff seeks, on behalf of herself and members of the Class, full 

2 restitut on, as necessary and according to proof, to restore any and all monies acquire by 

3 Defen ant from Plaintiff and members of the Class as a result of Defendant's f: lse, 

4 mislea ing and deceptive advertising as stated above. 
5 COUNTIV 

6 
(A ternatively, By Plaintiff, Individually and on Behalf of All California Clas 

7 

8 

9 

Members For Restitution I Unjust Enrichment Under California Law) 

Plaintiff incorporates and realleges all of the foregoing paragraphs. 

This Count is brought against Defendant pursuant to California's com on 

10 law do trine of unjust enrichment/restitution. 

11 At all times relevant hereto, Defendant marketed and sold the Sue Bee 

12 Honey as "honey" when it was not legally entitled to sell the Sue Bee Honey as "ho y," 

13 in the tate of California. 

14 5. Plaintiff and other similarly situated Class members conferred 

15 Defen ant benefits that were non-gratuitous profits. 

16 Defendant accepted or retained the benefits conferred by Plaintiff and 

17 simila ly situated Class members despite Defendant's knowledge of its mat rial 

18 misre resentations and omissions of material fact. 

19 77. Retaining the benefits conferred upon Defendant by 

20 simila ly situated Class members under these circumstances make Defendant's rete tion 

21 ofthe benefits unjust and inequitable. 

22 78. Because Defendant's retention of the benefits conferred by Plaintif 

23 other imilarly situated Class members is unjust and inequitable, Defendant mus pay 

24 restit tion in a manner established by the Court. 

25 I I I 

26 I I I 

27 I I I 

28 I I I 

13 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

2 :VHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that this Court: 

3 Certify this action as a class action under Rule 23 of the Federal Rut s o 

4 rocedure, appoint the named Plaintiff as the Class representative, and appoin. the 

5 under igned as class counsel: 

6 Issue a permanent injunction or other appropriate equitable relief requ ring 

7 Defen ant to refrain from marketing its Sue Bee Honey to consumers in the Sta o 

8 Califo ia; 

9 Order Defendant to pay PlaintifTand other members of the C1ass an am unt 

1 0 of act al and statutory damages, restitution and punitive damages in an amount t be 

11 dete ined at trial on Counts II through IV; 

12 

13 f. 

Issue an order granting Plaintiffs reasonable costs and attorneys' fees; d 

Grant such other relief as may be just and proper. 

14 DE1\1AND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 

15 laintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable. 
16 

17 Dated April (1, 2012 

18 

19 

:w 
21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

&LARSONLLP 

P ul . K sel, Esq. {SBN 119854) 
Jeffrey . Koncius, Esq. (SBN 189803) 
8648 Wilshire Boulevard 
Beverly Hills, CA 90211 
Telephone: (31 0) 854-4444 
Facsimile: (31 0) 854-0812 

Paul 0. Paradis, Esq. 
Gina M. Tufaro, Esq. 
Mark A. Butler, Esq. 
HOR\VITZ, HORWITZ & 

14 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

PARADIS, Attorneys at Law 
570 ih Avenue, 201

h Floor 
New York, NY 10018 
Telephone: (212) 986-4500 

Joseph J. M. Lange, Esq. (SBN 128115) 
JOSEPH J. M. LANGE 
LAW CORPORATION 
222 North Sepulveda Blvd. 
Suite 2000 
El Segundo, CA 90245 
Tel: (310)414-1880 
Fax: (310) 414-1882 
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